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Application for Sale, Transfer, or Merger of a RetåilPùblIUtFfitv e  
Pursuant to Chapter 13.251 of the Texas WateLco 

IdfuiLli 1.4 Ali 11: 22 

PUBLIC UTILITY C0,1HIS3I3N 
Fit ING CLERK 

Docket Number: 8 3 
(this number will be assigned by the Public Utility Commission after your application is filed) 

7 copies of the application, including the original, along with one copy of the portable electronic storage 
medium (such as CD or DVD) containing the GIS data shall be filed with 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 
Attention: Filing Clerk 

1701 N. Congress Avenue 
P.O. Bcix 13326 s  

Austin, Texas 78711-3326 

No later than seven days after filing the applicition for the boundary change, provide a copy of each paper 
map and a portable electronic storage medium (such as CD, flash drive or DVD) containing complete and 

identical data to the portable electronic storage medium submitted above to 

Texas Natural Resources Information System 
1700 N. Congress Ave, Room B40 

Austin, Texas 78701 
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X 

B. Utility Name (if different than above): 
Address: Telephone: (AC) 

'FR-M.1'01'mA 

$thlayiElths:Aec. f RPQ, 060. 

C. Contact person. Please provide information about the person to be contacted regarding this 
application. Indicate if this person is the owner, operator, engineer, attorney or accountant. 

Title Sbc. 
Telephone: (AC) (409)656-155-1 

Name 
Address 'POIE:(60248,,Kountie TX:7752S 

Part A—General Information 

*gN# )0116'680- *CN# 6.b362590:-: * (PRIOR TCEQ ID numbers) 

X 
1. 	Proposed action of application (check all the boges that apply): 

'Sale of X All 	 Portion 	of the 
Acquisition 
-Lease/Rental 

12945 - Water system(s) unsler CCN No.: 
Sewer system(s) under CCN No.: 

Transfer of 	All 	I Portion of the 	 Certificated water service area — CCN No.: 
Certificated sewer service area — CCN No.: 

If only a portion of a system oe certificated service area is affected by this transaction, please specify the areas 
or subdivision involved: 

and to: 
Obtain a CCN for the transferee(purchaser) — indicate if purchaser will take the seller's,CCN 
Amend the transferee's CCN No.: 
Merge or consolidate public utilities 

	
tity,of Kòù Rianchland,Water sýketii 

Cancel CCN of the transferor (seller) -X 

2. 	Proposed effective date of this transaction:19/1/2017 
(Must be at least 120 days after proper notice is provided) 

Part B — Current Service Provider or Seller information 

sr  Questions 3 through 5 apply to the transferor (current service prOvider or seller) 

3. 	For the current CCN holder or service provider please indicate:, 
A. Name: ..-kanafilarid,l?roPerty0-wneriAsoCiatiOn, [tic. 

(individual, Corporation or Other legal Entity) 

who is a(n):of  Individual  Corporation WSC X 
	

HOA or POA  Other 
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Date 

Email: Telephone (AC): x404216-3_463 - 1404246723.19 sti4S(§sbcglisbal.npt 

CCN Numbers held prior to the filing of this application; 

Utility Name: 

• Utility Address: 

Fax: 

(If different than above) 
Box,18811iT025,N.PIne, tOuntze,-TX 7:7626 

Email: sielmsoapolloenvironnientkcorn ' 	Fax: (09)_8i96,3,  

4. 	About the last rate increase for the system or facilities being 
transferred: 
A. What was ihe effective date of the last rate 
' 	increase? 

B. Was notice of this increase provided to the Public Utility Commission of Texas (commission or PUC) 
or a predecessor regulatory authority? 

No n Yes- Application/Docket Number: 

5. 	Plew provide a list of all customers affected by this transaction who have deposits held by the transferor 
or seller utility, if any, and include the following information (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
Name ind Address of Utility Customer 

_. 	. 

Date of 
Deposit 

Amount of 
Deposit 

Amount of Unpaid 
Interest on Deposit 

NA - — _. ... 	. 	
, 	...,. 	. 

• .. 1 . ' 
i . . . 

' . 	_ 4 
o — 	• • • . 

. - _ • ' i - 
. 

Part C — Purchaser or Transferee Information 

Er  Questions 6 through 16 refer to the transferee or purchaser. 

6. 	For ihe person or entity acquiring the facilities and/or CCN: 
Applicant: Cltý oftkountze 

(Individual, Corporation, or Other Legal Entity) 

7. 	Check the appropriate box and provide information regarding the legal status of the transferee 
applicant: 

individual 
Home or Property Owners Association 
Partnership; attach copy of partnership agreement 
Corporation; provide charter number as recorded with the Office of„the Secretary of State for 

Texas: 

• Non43rofit; member owned, member-controlled Cooperative Corporation (Article 1434(a) 
Water Sewer Service CiSrporation); provide charter number: 
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*Name: EiaineAllums 
	 Telephone (AC): (401)24-673403, 

Address: P.5.14o?c 168, Kountze,4X 7762-5 

  

Position: 74ay.c.KPrOlTem 
	

lOwnership 96i(if applicable): sioi* 

•Name: TeleptiOne (AC): "(408) '246-3463f  

AddreSi: !P0 Box-188, jkiuntze,:1- 7,025 

  

Aderivornari 
	

OwnershiP % (if applicable): 

Address: 
Pósition:. 

PG 60klillar, Kiiirctie; TXY7625 
Mennen, : 

Telephone (AC):' 

Ownership % (if apPliCable): 

'(489) 246-34e3- 

b:00%, 

•Name: Lester 	— 

•Name: GlenplAatthews_ 	 Telephone (AC): _(404)N-6440 

Addressi- ,EitD,6ox 186, Kountie; TO162-5 
Pošitioh: _ !steepen 	• • 	 .Onership %,(if applicable): e.docx, 

MunicipallY-owned utility 
District'(MUD, SUD,- WCID, etc:) 
County. 
Other (please explain): 	 

8. If the applicant is an Individual or sole proprietorship, provide the following information. If not, skip to 
the next auestion. . 

Name: 
. 	..... 

. 	
_ 	_ . , 

, 	s 
_... _ 

Email.  
Address _ 	 • . 

. 
_ _ 

Telephone' (AC): - - 	. . Fax (ACI: , 

9. If the applicant is other thah an lnalividUal,,provide the following inforMation regarding the officers or 
partners of the legal entity applying fpr the transfer. You must cornplete either qUestion 8 or question 
9;.Whichever applies tO theVarišfeiree applfcant. 

•Name: 
_ 

Fred Wiiiierrii 	. . 	 ,. 
. 	...,. __.... 

- 	Telephone-(AC): , ... 
(40-9) 246-a463  

Address: ] Ptitox'i 8a, KOuntze, TX 77625 . 
Position: Miyor 	.-: 	

-- - 
, Ownership % (if applicable): 0.00%  

•Narrie: :fiery--  :'Ac)ams 	— - 	— . _ _ 
_ 	.. Telephone (AC):*  - 

Addreis: 'PO Efox 18a, Kouritze,--15-( Tioi 5—  . 
- 	• . 	I 

Position: --hcleiworpan - Ownership'% (itapplicable): dayi  

- 	Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary 

Er Important: • If the applicant' is a for-profit corporation, please provide a copy of the corporation's 
"Certification of Acco,upt Statue froth the Statetomptroller Office. This "Certification of, 
Account Statue can be obtained from: 
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Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
P. O. Boxi3528, Capitol Station 

Austin, Texas 78711 
1-800-252-5555 

• lf the applicant is an Article 1434a water supply or sewer service corporation or other non-
profit corporation, please provide a copy of the Articles of incorporation and By-Laws. 

10. Ointact person. Please provide information about the person to be contacted regarding this 
application. Indicate if this person is the owner, opefator, engineer, attorney or accountant. 
Name: 'Rodeqck Hugo 	

• . Title: 	p M y 	miniStrator 	. 	
. 

Address: PO:Bmc išit, koynt4,)*X-77§,2.5 ' 	 ' Telephone (AC): 	(499)244:3432 
Fax # (409),20319-  Email 	rtikchosp_citopainet 

RelationshiO to the aOplicant:' City AciniinistratoL 	. 

IF THERE ARE MORE THAN TWOPARTIES INVOLVED IN THIS TRANSACTION, PLEASE ATrACH SHEETS 
PROVIDING THE INFORMATION REQUIRED IN QUESTION 6 
THROUGH QUESTION 10 FOR EACH PARTY 

11. Please respond to each of the following questions. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 
A. Describe the experience and qualifications of the applicant to provide adequate utility service to the 

requested area 
, 

:The City of Kount;e employs TgEt) certified water operators with knowle.dge of Water distributionAysterps and' 
yttell'oRerationš. TheCityof Kountie also lias_Ourrent teohnologyin trict billing'and*metering ably/at& seniibes: 

A 

B. Has the applicant acquiring the CCN or facilities or an affiliated interest of the applicant been under 
enforcement action by the PUC, TCEQ, Texas Department of Health (TON), the Office of the Attorney 
General (OAG) or the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in the past for noncompliance with 
rules, orders or State Statutes? 	I Yes X No 

lf yes, please attach copies of any correspondence with these regulatory agencies concerning these 
enforcemenfactions and describe any actions and efforts to comply with those requirements. Attach 
additional sheets itneeded. 

C. Describe the source and availabilitý of funds required to make the planned or required improvements, 
if any, to meet minimum requirements of the TCEQ and PUC and ensure continuous and adequate 
service. 

The)gity of:Kountze'will secure funcIslo.enaura,contipupus'Ancradaquate,s0viceby 
establishing ,utility,rates bated.on4he water cdnsumpticniofithe'Ranchland custorneys. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Fonn 10516) 
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D. Describe the anticipated impact otthis transactiOn on the quality of utility service and explain any 
anticipatedichanges in the quality of service. 

Whae,ity,of Kountze Will,deliver a betterquiiity of servicathroughltaknowledge of distribUtion operatióna,.yrell 
I-operations, billing'and i:helaring,And having dedi6aled,personnellavailableat .all tines to servethe' iyatern. 

E. How will the transaction serve the public interest? 
_ 	. 

ltwillprpvide Rancliland with a continuo* serviceend make eure that the water syetemis 
in compliance with;e11 stateandJederarregulations., 

12. Please describe the nature of thaproposed transaction: 

RanChlandiiexonveying.themitersyetem to the-City of ,Kountze; et^ho phargeto:receive a 
better quality,of service. 

13. If the transferee applicant is an Investor Owned Utility (IOU) and will be under.the rate jurisdiction of 
the PUC, please provide the following information. Water supply or-sewer service corporations and 
political subdivisions of the state shoUld mark this section N/A: 

A. • Total Purchase'Price: 	  
• Total Originaltost (as recorded On books of seller or merging entity): 
• Accumulated Depreciation-as of the proposed effective date of the 
transaction: 
• Contributions in Aid of Construction: 

- Specific surcharges approved by TCEQor 
PUC: 
- Revenues from explicit customer 
agreements: 

- .Developer Contributions (please explain): 

- Other Contributiona(please exPlain): 

Total COntributions !r) Aid of Construction 

• Net Book.Val0e: 
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Compiete thefollowing proposed entries listed below as shown in books of pur.chasing jor 
surviving) company. Additional entriés may be made; the following are suggested only, and 
not intended to pose descriptive:limitations.  

Utility Plant in Service: 

	

Plant Acquisition Adjustment: 	  

	

Extraordinary Loss on Purchase: 	  

	

Accumulated Depreciation of Plant: 	  

	

Cash: 	  

	

Notes Payable: 	  
Mortgage Payable:  

Others (please list): 

C. 

Date: 

w. 	If the Original Cost or any of the.above items has been established in a rate case proceeding 
by the PUC, the 1WC or the TCEQ; please provide-the Application/Docket Number and date: 

Application/Docket Number: 

, 	If the applicant is not under the rate jurisdiction ofthe TCEQ, only the purchase price and 
information related to Contributions in Aid of Construction is required. 

Please provide any other information concerning the nature of the transaction you believe 
should be given consideration if not explained elsewhere in the application. 

[attach additional sheet(s) if necessary): 

As.the purchaSer, l uriderstand thit it is my responsibility inApy future rate'proceedingto 
provide written evidence and support for the-original cost and installation date of all facilities 
used and useful for providing utility service. 

Purchasers Initials: 

14. 	Please indicate'the proposed effect of this transaction on the-rates to be charged to the affected 
customers: 
II the customers will be charged rthe same rates as they were charged before the transaction. 
ome 	3j II customers will be charged different rateš than they were charged before the 

ransactiiin. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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If rates are changing, please'explain: 
- 

The:City of KoUntzeNill install meters ateach :connection, and billithe;custtimer acCordingAo their 
:consumption. As cif now,clitomers,have:no nietenng of water consunned Land are chargicta•flatratk, 

F7Applicant is an IOU and intends to file with the commission or municipal regulatory'authority an 
application,fo change rates.of some/all of its customers as a result of this transaction. If so, please explain: 

Other. Please explain: 

15. 	list all neighboring water and /or sewer utilities, cities,,and political subdivisions providing the same 
iervice within two (2) miles of area affected by this proposed transaction. This information should be 
available from the'water utility database (WUD) or Applicants liOnsed water operator: 

1. Water nedessities 
2. (City otKouptze 

16. Financial, Managerial and Technical information for the acquiring entity. 

PUCT SOe Meiger Transfer (Previous Tqc) Forny10516) 
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Part D — Historical Financial information 

HISTORICAL BALANCE SHEETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash 

CURRENT 
YEAR (A) 

A-1 YEAR A-2 YEAR A-3 YEAR A-4-YEAR A-5 YEAR 

Accounts Receivable 

Inventories . 
income Tax Receivable 

Other 

Total 
FIXEDASSETS 
Land 

Collection/Distribution System  
Buildings 

Equipmeni . 
Other 

Less: Accum. DepreCiation or Reserves 

Total 
. 

TOTAL ASSETS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

' ACcounts Payable 

Notes Payable, Current 

Accrued Expenses 
 

Other,  . • 
TOTAL 

LONGTERM LIABILITIES 
Notes Payable, Long-term 

. 

Other 

TOTAL LIABIUTIES 
OWNER'S EQUITY 

. 

Paid in,Capital 

Retained Equity 

Other . . . 
Current Period Profit or Loss 

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY 	
. 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
WORKING,CAPITAL . . 
CURRENT RATIO 
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO EQUITY TO TOTAL 
ASSETS 

, 

PUCT Sale' Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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HISTORICAL INCOME STATEMENT 

METER NUMBER 

CURRENT 
YEAR (A) 

. 

A-1 YEAR A-2 YEAR A-3 YEAR A-4 YEAR A-5 YEAR 

Existing Number of Taps 

New Taps Per Year . 	, . 
Total Meters at Year End 

METER REVENUE 

. Fees Per Meter 

Cost Per Meter 

Operating Revenue Per Meter 

GROSS WATER REVENUE 

Fees 	' 

Other 

Gress Income 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
- 

General & Administrative 

Interest 

Other 

NET INCOME 

pUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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HISTORICAL EXPENSE DETAIL 
_ 

GENERAL/ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 

- Salaries 

CURRENT 
YEAR A 

A-1 YEAR A-2 YEAR A-3 YEAR A-4 YEAR A-5 YEAR 

Offide Expense  

Computer Expense 	- 
Auto Expense - 
Insurance Expense 	 . ., 
Telephone Expénse, • 
Utilities Expense 
Depreciation Expense , 
Property Taxes 
Professional Fees 
Other . 	• 
Total 
% Increase Per Year 	

. 

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 
Salaries 

• 

_ 
Auto Expense 
Utilities Expense ' 
Depreciation Expense - - 
RTair & Maintenance . 

Supplies 	' 
Other 
Total 
% Increase Per Year 
ASSUMPTIONS 	 . 
Interest Rate/Terms 

• _. 

Utility Cost/gal. 
. 

Depreciation Schedule 
Other .. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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Part E — Projected Information 

PROJECTED BALANCE SHEETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
START UP YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 

Cash 	• 

- Accounts Receivable _ 
'Inventories 
Income Tax Receivable 
Other 
Total 
FIXED ASSETS 

. 

. 

LEind 
Collection/Distribution System , 
Buildings . 
Equipment  

Other 
Less: Accum. Depreciation or Reserves 

Total 	 , 
TOTAL ASSETS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

, 

. Accounts Payable 	. 
Notes Payable, Current 
Accrued Expenses ' 
Other • 
Total 
LONGTERM LIABILITIES 
Notes Payable, Long-term 
Other 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 
OWNEWS E II MTV 
Paid in Capital.  
Retained Equity 
Other 

, Current Period Profit or Loss 
TOTAL OWNEWS EQUITY ' 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 	' 
WORKING CAPITAL 
CURRENT RATIO . 
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO 
EQUITY TO TOTAL ASSETS . 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
Page 12 of 23 9/1/2014 



• PROJECTED INCOME STATEMENT 

METER NUMBER 
Existing Numlier of Taps 

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 TOTALS 

New Tips Per Year 
Total Meters at Year End 	. 
METER REVENUE 
Fees Per Meter . 
Cost Per Meter 	. 
0 . eratin . Revenue Per Meter 

GROSS WATER REVENUE 
Fees 

, 

Other 
Gross Income 
OPERATING EXPENSES 
General & Administrative 
Interest 
Other . 
NET INCOME 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
Page 13 of 23 9/1/2014 



PROJECTED EXPENSE DETAIL 

. 
GENERAL/ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
Salaries 	 • 

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 TOTALS 

Office Expenše 	. 	. 
, Computer Expense 
Auto ExOense 
Insurance Expense 	 - 

'Telephone Expense 
Utilities Expense 
Depticiation Expense  
Property Taies _ 
Professional Fees 
Other 
Total 
% Increase Per Year 
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 
Salaries 

' 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

_ 

0.00% A00% 0.00% 

Auto Expense 
‚Utilities Expense 
Depreciation Expense . . 
Repair& Maintenance 
SUpplies , 
Other 
Total 
% Increase Per Year 
ASSUMPTIONS 
Interest Rate/Terms 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Utility.Cost/gal.- 	 . 
Depreciation Schedule 
Other 	 . 	 . 	. ' 
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PROJECTED SOURCES AND USES OF CASH STATEMENTS 

. 
SOURCES OF CASH 
Net Income 

YEAR I YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 TOTALS 

_ 
Depreciation (If Funded) 
Loan Proceeds . 
Other 
Total Sources 	

. 

USES OF CASH 
Net Loss 
Principle Portion of Pmts. , 
Fixed Asset Purchase • 

• • 	- .- 
Reserve . 

Other 	. . 
Total Uses 
NET CASH FLOW 	 . 

1DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
Cash Available for Debt . 
SERVICE CADS 
Net Income (Loss) 	' 

. 

Depreciation, or Reserve Interest 
Total  
RE s UIRED DEBT SERVICE • s S 
Princt m le Pluš Interest 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
CADS Divided by RDS 

. 

. 
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Part F — TCEQ Public Water or Sewer System Information 

Please answer questions 17 through 22 on a different sheet for each physically Distinct system being 
transferred or acquired. 

17. A. For Water Systems. TCEQ Public Water System Identification Number: 

Date of last inspection: 127:6-2938 

B. 	For Wastewater Systems: 

-tCEQ Discharge Permit Number: 	W Q  
-Name of Permitee: 	  ." 

-Date of application to transfer Discharge Permit submitted: 
-Date of application to transfer Discharge Permit approved by TCEQ: 

o 
	

7 

18. A. Are any improvement's required to meet TCEQ or PUC 
standards? 

 

yes 

 

No. If yes, please explain: 

     

• 

B. Is there a moratorium on new connections? 

 

Yes 12LI No. If yes, please explain: 

  

C. Provide details of each' required malor dapital improvement to correct the deficiencies and meet the 
TCEO or PUC standards attach additional sheets if necess : 
Description of the Required hnprovement Schedule to Complete. Estimated Cost . 

..NA . 	. _ - 
• 

• 

19. Does the system.being transferred operate within the.city limits of a municipality or within district 
boundaries? 	Yes X No 

If yes, indicite the number of customers within the city limits or district boundaries: 
Water • Sewer 

Attach copy of franchise agreement or consent letter from the city or district. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (PreviousICEQ Form 10516)- 
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20..Do  you currently  purchase water or sewer treattner_olacity froth  another  source? 
i 	I  Water 	Sewer 	Purchased on a 	Regular 	Seasonal 

  

Yes 57No 
Emergency Basis 

  

    

• Source: % of total supply: (Von% 

21. 	List the number of existin connection§ to be effected by this transaction. 
Water Sewer 	' 

15 -Non Metered -2"meter -Residential Connection . 
-5/8" or 3/4" meter -31! meter -Commercial Connection 

 

-1"-meter -4" meter 	. -Industrial Conneetion . 
-1 1/2" meter :Other -Other  

Total Sewer Connections Total Water Connections: i  . , 	. 	, 	-.- 	o 

20. Has the system reached 85% of its capacity based on TCEQ's minimum requirements? 
If yes, please explain what steps are being taken to address the capacity issues: 

Ranchland subdivi§ion,hat no potential for fgrther gravith,as thempre'no additional** 
available forpele. However, 'before any qdditional connections mould be made, the owner 
wourd follockproper protocol tolekpand itppresure tank capacity. 

23. 	List the naine, class, and license number of the operator(s) that will be responsible for the, System: 

Name 
	

Class 
	

License# 

24: Attach the following maps with each copy of the application: 
a. One small scale map clearly showing affected service area with enough detail td accurately locate the 

area if the applicatiOn is for the transfer of all or a portion of a CCN. 
b. One large kale map showing 'tile proposed service area boundaries being sold, transferred, or merged 

and, if available, the existing and proposed facilities. Color coding should be used to differentiate 
existing from proposed facilities. Facilities and.service area boundaries should be shown with such 
exactneis that they can be located on the ground. If transferring area not currently in a CCN or a portion 
of an existing CCN area please attach the following hard copy maps with each copy of the application: 

-1. A general location map'delineating the proposed service area with enongh detail 
accurately looate the proposed area within the county. 

2. A map showing only the proposed area by: 
i. 	metes and bounds survey certified by a licensed state or registered professional land 

surveyor; or 
projeatable digital data with metadata (proposed areas should be in a single record 
and clearly labeled, data disk should be included); or 

iii. following verifiable natural and man-made landmarks, or 
iv. a copy of recorded plat map with metes and bounds. 

3. A written description of the proposed service area. 
PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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SEAL 

viz-4111aindahabodibieisaiesiiihnisme. 

KRISTI LAVIRENCE 
Notary ID * 124572044 
Sly Cimmission Expiru 

October 10, 2920 
drimpgripwwwqemuoungawirellemarql 

NOTARY P BLIC IN AND FOR THE 
STATE OF TEXAS 

len-f;ep  
PRITT OR TYPE NAME OF NOTARY 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES FIttp1-a0Q0,-) 

Part G — Oaths and Notices 

OATH FOR SELLER OR FORMER SERVICE PROVIDER 

STATE OF 	Pi*As 
	 z 	771 

COUNTY OF rlardin. 

 

, being duly sworn, file this application for 
sale, lease, rental or merger or consolidation as 

	
inc.  

(indicate relationship to applicant) that is, owner; member of partnership, title as officer of corporation, or other authorized 
representative of applicant); that, in such capacity, I am qualified and authorized to file and verify such application, am personally 
familiar with the documents filed with this application, and have complied with all the requirements contained in the application; 
and, that all such statements made and matters set forth therein with respect to applicant are true and correct. Statements about 
other parties are made on information and belief. I further state that the application is made in good faith and that this application 
does not duplicate any filing presently before the Commission. 

I further state that I have provided to the purchaser or transferee a written disclosure statement aboutany contributed property as  
required under Section 13'.301(i) and copies of any outstanding Order3 of the Texas Corrimission on Environmental Quality, the  
Public Utility Commission of Texas, or Attorney Gengral ind hive also complied with the notice requirements in Section 13.301(k) of 
the Texas Water Code.  

AFFIANT 
(Utility's Authorized Representative) 

If the Affiant to this form is any person other than the sole owner, partner, officer of the Applicant, or its attorney, a properly 
verified Power of Attorney must be enclosed. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, this 
day t2.411., 	l of Eft* 	i , 	20 EI7-1  • 

One copy of this page must be submitted for each utility involved in this transaction. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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`WI WI" 11,111111,10 11 I 	1, I If MP / WWI 11/111.11.111 

SALLIE GORDON 
NOTARY PUSLIO- STATE OF TEXAS 

0 UMW 
My CorrOssion Es* tiMM•201? 

111111111.111011UW11  

NOTARY PUBLIC IN,AND FOR THE 
STATE' TE OF XAS 

471AL 

%.,t, • 

PRINT OR TYPE NAME OF NOTARY 

MY COMMISSIOWEXPIRES 
	 n1Q141---/ 

OATH FOR PURCHASER OR ACQUIRING ENTITY 

STATE OF -.1 

      

COUNTY OF 

     

      

I, 	ECZTA, T 	, being duly swOrn, file this application for 4e,c7( •  

sale, lease, rental or merger or consolidation as  
(indicate relationship to applicant) that is, owner, member of partrit  sh10, title as officer of corporation, or otRer authorized 
representative of applicant); that, in such capacity, I am qualified and authorized to file and verify such application, am 
personally familiar with the docurnents filed with this application, and have complied with all the requirements contained in 

the application; and, that all such statements made and Matters set forth therein with respect to applicant are true and 
correct. Statements about other parties are made on information and belief. I further state that the application is made in 
good faith and that this application does not duplicate any filing presently before the Commission. 

l am also authorized and do agree to bebound bv and comply with any outstanding orders of the Texas Commission on  
Environmental Quality, the Public Utility ComMission Of Texas or the Attorney General which have bden issued to the system 
or facilities being acquired and recognize that I will be subiect to administrative penalties or:other enforcement actions if I  

do not comply.  

AFFIANT 
(Utility's Author.ized Representative) 

If the Affiant to this form is any person other than the sole owner, partner, officer of the Applicant, or its attorney, a properly verified 
"Power of Attorney must be enclosed. 

Applicant represents that all other parties to this transaction have been furnished copies of this completed application. 

SUBSCRIÇD ND SWOR 0 BEFORE ME, a Noty Public in and for the State of Texas, this 
day F." 	71 of 	, 	, 20 r 

SEAL 

One copy of this page must be submitted for each utility involved in this transaction. 
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FORM A 	 Docket No.1 	 

Notice to Current Customers, Neighboring Systems and Cities 

`ReliCilland 

(Sellers or Trinsferors Name) 

NOTICE OF INTENT.TO  SELL FACILITIES ANDTRANSFER CERTIFICATE  OF CONVENIENCE AND  
NECESSITY (CCN) NO 	Ii2š5 	 1  TO :6:11Y-FiGuritze_ 

(Purchasers or Transferees Name) 

IN 	;Hardin 	 Cr OUNTY, TEXAS 

1 Date Notice Mailed 	 , 20 

(Name of Customer, Neighboring System or City) 

  

1 

 

   

 

(Address) 

   

  

1 

   

 

City 
	

State 	 Zip 

   

     

f Ranchland- 	P0ApInc. 	 PO Efox-1248 	,Kountze, TeTras 77625_ 

Sellers or Transferors Name 
	

Address 	• 	 City/State/Zip Code 

has submitted an application with the Public Utility Commission of Texas to šell facilities and transfer 
water or sewer (please select) CCN No, 	 ;12945.  in flrdin,,  I [County Name] 

County.to: 

pity of Kountze 
	

:102514;Ph*Street 	'Kountze:-TXi77.625 

purchasers6r Transfeiees Name 
	

Address 	 City/State/Zip Coda 

The sale is scheduled to take place as'approved by the Commission (V.T.C.A., Water Code 0.3.301). The transaction and the transfer of. 
the CCN include the following subdivision(s): 

[Ranchland 

[ 	_ 	miles   [direction] of The area subject to this transaction is located approximately 2.2  
- 

downtown 	Kiruntze- 	• 	 -1 ,[City or Townrexas, and is  generally  bounded on the north by 	  

Nates koad , 	 — 1 ;on,the east by 	Pidi:Williford-Road  

;orithe gbuth by Oh 69' 	 7-1  ;and on therwest by 

The total area being r.equested includes approximately 	;220- 	acres, and serves 	[15„ 	I current customers. 

This transaction will have the fóllowing effect on the current customer's rites and serviceš:  

771 

Affected persons may file written protests and/or request a Public hearingwitnin 30 days of this notice. 
To request a hearing„you must: 

(1) state your,name, mailing address and daytime telephone number; 
(2) state the applicant's nail* application nunther.or another recognizable reference to this application; 
(3) include the itatément "Ifwe request a public haarine; 
(4) write a brief description of how you, the persons you represent, or the public interest would be 

adveriely affected bY the proposed transaction and transfer of the CCN; and 

(5) state your proposed'adjustmentto the application' ortCN whiCh Would satisfy your concerns and 
cause you to withdraw yOur requést for a hearing. 

Page 20 Of 23 
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Only those persons who submit a written request to be notified of a hearing will receive notice if a hearing is scheduled. The • 
Commission will issue the CCN requested in the referenced application unless a hearing is'scheduled to consider the transaction. If no 
protestš or requests for hearing are filed during the comment period, the Commission may issue the CCN 30 days after:publication of 
this notice. 

Persons who wish to protest or request a hearing on this application should write the: 
Filing Clerk 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 
1701 North Congress Avenue 

P.O. Box 13326 
Austin, Texas 78711-3326 

Se desea informadon en Espanol, puede !lamer al 
1-888-782-8477 

paficly7ElinšrSec,  
Utility Representative 

Ranchirphcl-Prpperfirciwncr,TAssopiation:,-Inc:1  
Utility Name 

• 
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Docket No. 	r--- 

Notice to Current Customers, Neighboring Systems, Landoymer and Cities 

FRI"WcWaild 
	

I'S  NOTICE OF INTENT TO SELL FACILITIES TO 
,(Seller's or Transferor Name) 

_H AND FOR 

TO OBTAIN OR AMEND A CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY (CCN) IN 
itiardin 	 COUNTY, TEXAS 

	 Date Notiee Mailed 	 • 	 ,20 
(Name of Customer, Neighboring Systeni, Landowner or City) 

(Addres0 

City 	 State 	Zip 

Sellers or TraOsferors Name Address 	 City/State/Zip Code 

has submitted an aPplication with the Public Utility Commission of Texas to sell water of sewedplease 
select) Facilities in 	[Hardin, 	 -1  [County Name] County to: 

1025 N4Pine Street 	 ,)Kot-11—ze, Texas77625- 
Purchasefs_or Transferees Naine 

	
Addiess 	 City/State/Zip COde 

The transferee has also requested to obtain/amend a CCN in this application. The sale is scheduled to ta.ke  place as approved by the 
Commissiok(Texas Water Code §13.301). The transaction and the propbsed service area incrude the following subdivision(s): 

Manchland ROA ,1nc. 	
---1 

The area subject tpthisyansactiori is located approximately 	 12.2 	1  miles 	SE 	._ _,l  [direction] of 
downtown  ikountze 	 - • ' . -1  ,[City or Town] Texas, and is ienerally bounded on the north by 

Gates Road 	 i .;on the east by 	rOld S.,Williford.RoaCI 	 ,. _ 	.  
;on the south by 	il-14 69, 	 7-7-1  ;and on the west by 	ihlwy,69 , 	•  

' 

The total area being requested includes approximptely 	 (.2171..  acres and,serves 	15  
This transaction will have the following effect On the current customer's rates and 'services: 

"1  current customers. 

Affected persons may file written protests.and/or request a public hearing within 30 days of this notice. 
To request a' hearing, you must: 

(1) stateyour name, mailing address and daytime telephone nurnber; 
(2) state the applicant's name, applica_tion number or another recogriiza6le reference to this application; 
,(3) include the statement ''I/we request a public hearing.% 
(4) Write a brief description of how you, the per,sons you represent, or the public interest would be adversely 

affected by the proposed transaction and transfer of the CCN; and 

(S) state your proposed adjustment to the application or CCN which'woold satisfy your concerns and cause you to withdraw 
your request for a hearing. 

Only those persons who submit a written request to be notified of a hearing will receive notice if a hearing is scheduled. The 
Commission will issue the CCN requested in the referenced application unless a hearing is scheduled to consider the transaction. If no 
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FORM B 

ratty of Kountze • 

(Purchaser 	
. 

's 6r Transferees Name)" 	 Purchaser's or Transferees Name) 

To: t 



protests or requests for hearing are filed during the comment period, the Commission may issue the CCN 30 days after publication of 
this notice. 

Persons who wish to protest or request a hearing on this application should write the: 
Filing Clerk 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 
1701 North Congress Avenue 

P.O. Box 13326 
Austin, Texas 78711-3326 

Se desea Informacion en Espanol, puede !lamer al 
1-888-782-8477 

ikavy gtns,,s,oc. 
UtilitY ReOrešentative 

tRanchland erbperty °Omer% Meociaticin, lnc 

Utility Name, 
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Manageinent Letter 

April 18, 2017 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
City Council Members ofthe- 

City of Kountze, Texas: 

The Ainerican InstitUte of Certified Puhlic Acconntants Statement •on AuditingStandards No. 115, 
do!timunicating InternabControl Related katters Identified in an -.3luditl(SAS 115), pinvides guidance to 
auditors.on coinmunicating internal control matters .to management and the goirefiiing body, board:of • 
directors, or equivalent body. 

It ik important to mite *hen ,reviewing 'findings repOrted within this letter that classification of the 
findings Lis based on-the definitions requiredby. SAS 115 as further. discussedibe1ow. Please note that 
these classifications ere based on _the potential impact to the financial, statements, not necessarily the 
likelihood of, actualloss ththe-City of Kountze, Texas (the "City"):  Accordingly„the City's assessment 
of the ``significance or ranking of severity will.likely he substantially different based on a:number of 
factoEs inchiding,but not limited to, itslissessnient,of risk and the cost benefit of making.the change. 

Our report is as follows: 

In planning, and peiforming our audit of the financial statements of the •. governmental actiVities, the 
businessAype.activities, the discretely presented component unit,,and each major fundnf the City as of 
and for the' year ended September.30, 2616,-in accordance with auditing standards geherally accepted in 
the United States of Ametica', we considered tie Citys internal cOntrol Over financial reporting (internal 
control).  asxbasis fOr deSigning our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the 
financial statementa, hut not'for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the,effectivepess of the 'City"s 
interna control. =',./kcpordingly„.we ,do nOti express an opinion on the , effectiveness of the .City's internal 

.cOntroi. 

6Ru:consideration of interna1‘control *as for the limited purpose described in the preneding,paragraph 
and was nOtdesigned to identify all deficienciesin internal contiol.thatmight be,material weiknesies :or 
significaht deficiencies and, therefore,:rnaterial *eaknesses or significant deficienCies:may.exist that were 
notidentified. However, as discussed below, Nye identified certain deficienciekin internal cont.& that we 
consider' tqbea significant defiCiency and other matters. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
managefilent or employees, !,in the ,normal course of perforiningrtheir assigned fUnctions, toLpreVent, or 
,deteet and correct, misstatements oiz.  a tiihely.,baiis.,  A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a 
combination Of deficiencies, in interita1„bqiitrol, stich that there is a reasonable possibility that' a material 
misstatement of the :City's financial Statements wilInot be,prevented, or deteOted and corrected, on a 
timely basis. 

. . 	- 
ilmatoi, 
3210 Single Rd., Ste:300 

'Heruiicie;TX poss 
713:263.1123 

id18lik 
'P.O. Box 826 
Saville, TX 77419 
713.263.1123 

&Olin 	 Ail_Qffisee,  
100 Caigreu 	Ste. 2000 	,ireicesivditore.eom 
Anstio,TX 78701 	 info@ ridiuditoreiiom 
512.381.0222. 	 1713.263.1550 Sur' 

 

Governmental 
taidit thiality Center 

- 
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City of Kountze, Texas 
Nanagement Letter 
Page 2 of 

A significant teficiencY :is a defidiency, or a combinationoof deficiencies, in intemal contrõl that is less, 
severe thai á material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our findings and-additional comments are as follows: 

CURRENT YEARMATTERS 

Significant Deficiency 

2016-001. BANK RECONCILIATIONS 

Criteria 

The City is responsible for-balancing and reconciling bank etatements and'accurately accounting for the 
Citys cash accounts. 

Condition 

We noted the computer .gencrated'bank reconciliations ending balances do not reconcile to the, City's 
generaliedger. The outstanding checks/deposits list appears to be_ correct; however, Abe ending balances 
dunot reconciliback tO,the appropriate general ledger account. 

Effect 

The City is at risk for loss of fands due to lack of accounting for cash. 

Cause  

The Citylacks experience in reconciling bank statements with the current software. 

Recommendation  

The ,City should consider seeking guidance from their software company to assist with the bank 
reconciliation and to ensure the reConCiled balances agrees to the general ledger accounts: 

OtherMatters 

2016-002. EXPENL!ITIJRESIN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS 

Ciiteriit 

Chapter,102 of the Texas Local Government Code, Municipal Budget, prescribes requirements for Texas 
muniMpalities regardingannual budgets: 

Condition 

•As disclošed in the notes to the financial statements„ expenditures in the general. fund exceeded 
appropriitions at,the legal level of control.. 



City of Kountze, Texas 
Management Letter 
page 3 of 3 

ftecommendation 

The City ,should ensure that expenditures do not rexceed apprópriations-epproved by- City"COuncil in 
accordance with the 'Local:Government Code. If the original authorizetion *insufficient, an amendment 
shonid be proposed to City Council in sufficient tiine'só as not' to ;impede the'City's nornial proenremenf 
process. 

2016-003. PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT 

Criteria 

Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government-Code, Public Funds Investment Act (the "Act") presCribes certain 
reqirements for government and nonprofit entities invest1ng public fiinds. Cine of the more basic 
reqUirements ;Of dip Actincludes annual review and approval of itsinvesbnent policy. 

Condition 

As ,of September ,30, 2016, the investment policy,  was not reviewed and approved by the, City Council 
during the current year. 

RicommendatiOn 

The City should take steps necessary to review and approve the inirestment policy annually for 
compliance with the Act. More information on the Act can be found online' at 
www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us. 

ThiS 'communication is intended solely for the information and nse of, firenagement, City Council, and 
otheri within 'ihe City, and is not intended,to be and ishould not be used bY anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

We,  would like ,to thank the,  City CounciPand the City!Lmanagement for their cooperation during Ake 
course of our audit. Please feel free to,contagfus at your convenience to discuss this. repektor any other 
concerns that yon may have. 

(WELT 115"ARRis UY'ECHACEK;:wja 

'Belt Hats l'ehacek LLLP 
gain:fled eublic Accountants 
Houitoh, Texas 
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INDEPENDENTAVD1TORY REPORT 

To" theRonorable Mayor and 
City.Council Members of the 

City Of Kountze, Texas: 

RePort on the Financial Statements - 

We have audited the , accompanying financial statements of the .govemrnental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented coniponent unit, and each major fund of the -City of Kountze, Texaa .(the 
"City), asiof and for the year ende&SePtember 3_0, 2016, and the related-notes to the finanCial statements, which 
gollectivelycomprise the citses basic 'financial stateMentsaklisted in the table of contenta. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation4ind fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accoUnting :principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the ,design, 
imPlementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation ,and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material inisatatement,.whether due4olraud or error. 

Auditors Responsibilitý 

Our responsibility is ,to express .ppinions ,on these -financial statements based on , ouraudit. We condifUed.our 
accordance with_auditing, standards generally accepted in the-  pnited .States Of America:  Those standards: 

require that ,we plan_and Perfornithe audit to Obtain,reasonable'assurance about whether the7financialatatements 
are fre&from material n3išstatement 

An audit involve& perforniing procedures to obtain audit evidence -about the amounts .and :disclosures in the 
,financiestatements;  Therprocedpres selected dependun the auditors'-judgment, inclUdingthe assessment of the 
riSks ern-Atonal inikstatement fof the financial statements, whether due t6 fraud Or.  drrdr. In making „those risk-
assessments, the auditor cOnsiders iiiternal- control relevant to thekCity's preparation indffair preaentation of the 
finiyicial-statem.ents in ordelito desiguaudit procedures that are appropriate bathe circUmstances, 'but not forthe 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the,effectiveness of the City'a internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
inch opinion. An audit also inchicles evaluating, the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the. 
reasonableness, of significant accounting estimatea' made by `management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the ,fitiancial,statements. 

We 'believe that the audit _evidence Are ,have obtained' iš sufficiént . and approyriate,to provide, a' basis:for our;audit 
opinions.' 

 

_ .. 
Baas 	 Amin 	 AIMS= 
P.O. Scot 826 	 100,congsess Ave..; Sta. 2000 	vriew.tionauditon.com  
Bellae, TX 77418 	 AustbOX,78701' ' , 	 infoi!Mitiditin.Cam 
713.263.1123 	 512,311.0222 	 713:263.1550 

 

Govembentil 
Audit,00itý ,C ante! 3210 apip RI, Ste. 360 

H 	̀oustOti. TX 77055 
713.263.1123 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of thelovernmental activities, thebusiness,type activities, the discretelypresented component 
unit, and each major fund of the City as of September 30, 2016,, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the ,year then ended, in.aecorciance with accounting 'principles 
generally accePted iv the United$tates of America. 

•-• 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting ptinciples generally accepted in the United States Of America, require that - the Managemees 
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison‘information, schedule ..of changes in net penaion liabilityand 
related ratios,:and schedule of contributions, identified'as Required Supplementaryinformation on the table of 
contents, be presented to.supplement the bade financial ,statements. Such information, although not ayart of the 
1?. asic financial statements, is requited by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial staternents in an appropriate operational, 
economic; or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required SupPlementary 
Information in .accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inqUiries of management :about the •niethods of preparing ;the information and comparing the 
infOrmation for conšistency with • management's responses •to our inquiries, the basie financial statements, and 
other knowledge me Otained during our audit of the basicfmancial statements. We do not express an opinioiror 
provide any ,apsurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
eyiaence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

CeELT 

Belt Harris Pephriceir, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
April 18, 2017 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

The purpose of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to give the readers an objective and 
easily readable analysis of the financial activities of the City of Kountze, Texas (the "City") for the year ending 
September 30, 2016. The analysis is based on currently known facts, decisions, and economic conditions. It 
presents short and long-term analysis of the City's activities, compares current year results with those of the prior 
year, and discusses the positive and negative aspects of that comparison. Please read the MD&A in conjunction 
with the City's fmancial statements;which follow this section. 

ME STRUCTURE OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT 

Components of the Financial Section 

, 	Management's 
	

Basic Financial 
	

Required 
Discussion and 
	

Statements 
	

Supplementary 
Analysis 
	

Information 

... 	..... • 
	

.......... • • . 

Independent 
Auditors Report 

Govemment-Wide 
Financial 

Statements 

Fund Financial 
Statements 

Component Unit 
Financial 

Statements 

Notes to the Financial 
Statements 

Sununary 
r. 

Detail 

The city's basic fmancial statements include (1) government-wide financial statements', (2) individual fund 
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also includes supplementary 
information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 

Governinent-Wide Statements 

The gävernment-wide statements report information for the City as a whole. These statements include 
transactions and balances relating to all assets, including infrastructure capital assets. These statements are 
designed 'to provide information about cost of services, operating results, and fmancial position of the City as an 
economic entity. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which appear first in the City's 
financial statements, report informatiOn on the City"s activities that enable the reader to understand the financial 
condition of the City. These statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to 
the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken 
into account even if cash has not yet changed hands. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities, .and deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position rnay serve as a useful indiCator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. Other non-financial factors, such as the city's property tax base and the condition of the city s 
infrastructure, need to be considered in order to assess the overall health of the City. 

5 



crry OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most 
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows — the accrual method rather than modified accrual that is 
used in the fund level statements. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the City's financials into two classes of 
activities: 

1. Governmental Activities — Most of the City's basic services are reported here including general 
government, public safety, public works, and municipal court. Interest payments on the City's 
debt are also reported here. -Sales tax, property tax, franchise taxes, municipal court fines, and 
permit fees finance most of these activities. 

2. Business-Type Activities — Services involving a fee for-those services are reported here. These 
services include the City's water, sewer, and gas provision services. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary gOvemment), 
but also a legally separate economic development corporation for whicIF the City is financially accountable. 
Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for 
the primary government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found after the MD&A. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Funds may be cbnsidered as operating companies of the parent corporation, which is the City. They are usually 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance related legal reporting requirements. The two categorieš of City funds are governmental 
and proprietary. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in 
evahiating the City's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
'useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and 
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconCiliation 
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains one individual governmental fund, which is the general fund. 

The City adopts an annual appiopriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison Schedule has been 
provided for the general fund to demonstrate Compliance with this budget. 
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Crry OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

For ihe Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Proprietary Funds 

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund.' The enterprise fund is used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses 
the enterprise fund to account for its water distribution, wastewater collection/treatment, and gas distribution 
operations. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements of this 

• report. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are the last section of the basic 
finanCial statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to basic financial statements, this MD&A, and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI). The RSI includes a budgetary comparison schedule for the general 
fund and the schedule of changes in net penšion liability and related ratios and schedule of contributions for the 
Texas Municipal Retirement System. RSI can be found after the notes to the basic financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's financial position. For the 
City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed liabilities and deferred inflows 'of resources by $2,698,799 
as of year end. This dompares with $2,753,167 from the prior fiscal year. A portion of the City's net pOsition, 64 
percent, reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land, building, equipment, improveMents, and 
infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uges these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the ,assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Statement of Net Position: 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total 
Primary 

Government 
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Current and other assets $ 	' 1,168,101 $ 	1,288,837 $ 	721,252 	• $ 	705,193 $ 	1,889,353 $ 	1,994,030 
Capital assets, net 1,619,698 1,571315 773,762 870,194 2,393,460 2,441,509 

Total Assets 2,787,799 2,860,152 1,495,014 1,575,387 4,282,813 4,435,539 

Deferred outflows - pension 36,145 7,031 24,881 4,886 61,026 11,917 
Total Deferred 

Outflows of Resources 36:145 7,031 24,881 4,886 61,026 11,917 

Long-term liabilities 1,304,484 12343,082 111,967 49,508 1,416,451 1,392,590 
Other liabilities 58,608 82,351 159,155 205,941 217,763 288,292 

Total Liabilities 1,363,092 1 425 433 271,122 255,449. 1,634,214 1,680,882 

Deferred inflows - pension 6,381 7,910 4,445 5,497 10,826 13,407 
Total Deferred 

Inflows of Resources 6,381 7,910 4,445 5,497 10,826 13,407 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital 

assets 1,056,550 1,040,989 665,935 828,280 1,722,485 1,512,269 
Restricted 173,004 141,725 173,004 141,725 
Unrestricted 224,917 251,126 578,393 491,047 803,310 1,099,173 

Total Net Position $ 	1,454,471 $ 	1,433,840 $ 	1,244,328 $ 	1,319,327 $ 	2,698,799 $ 	2,753,167 

A portion of the City's net position, $173,004 or 6 percent, represents resources that are subject tci external 
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $803,310 or 30 percent, 
may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors. 

The City's total net position of $2,698,799 decreased by $54,368 compared to the prior year. This change can be 
primarily attributed to a decrease in capital grant and contributions. Total revenues for the City decreased by 
$725,600, along with a decrease in overall expenditures of $79,137. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAiYSIS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Statement of Aefivifies: 

The following table provides a summary of the City's changes in net position: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total 
Primary 

Government 
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 	582,479 $ 	726,575 $ 	911,873 $ 	983,280 $ 	1,494,352 $ 	1,709,855 
Operating grants and contributions 20,846 36,007 - 56,853 - 
Capital grants and contributions 401,380 - 196,655 - 598,035 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 270,119 257,790 270,119 257,790 
Sales tax 454,630 444,296 - 454,630 444,296 
Franchise and occupancy taxes 162,907 -. 167,193 - - 162,907 167,193 
Interest revenue 292 250 395 351 687 601 
Other 27,338 22,649 20,527 12,594 47,865 35,243 

Total Revenues 1,518,611 2,020,133 968,802 1,192,880 2,487,413 3,213,013 

Expenses 
General gOvemment 587,558 671,905 587,558 671,905 
Public safety 352,137 296,221 352,137 296,221 
Public works 339,536 310,082 L 339,536 310,082 
MUnicipal court 

# 
249,531 258,946 - 249,531 258,946 

Interest and fiscal agent fees - 22,025 68,188 2,432 21,580 24,457 89,768 
Water, sewer, and gas system - - 988,562 993,996 988,562 993,996 

Total Expenses 1,550,787 1,605,342 990,994 1,015,576 2,541,781 2,620,918 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 
Before Transfers (32,176) 414,791 (22,192) 177,304 (54,368) 592,095 

Transfers in (out) 52,807 (394,536) (52,807) 394,536 

Changes in Net Position 20,631 20,255 (74,999) 571,840 (54,368) 592,095 

Beginning net position 1,433,840 1,413,585 1,319,327 ' 747,487 2,753,167 2,161 072 

Ending Net Position $ 	1,454,471 $ 	3,433,840 S 	1,244,328 $ 	1,319,3'27 $ 	2,698,799 $ 	2,753,167 

For the year ended September 30„2016, revenues from governmental activities totaled $1,497,765, excluding 
$20,846 in operating grants and contributions, compared with $1,618,753 in the prior year, excluding $401,380 in 
'prior year capital grants and contributions. Overall, revenues from governmental activities totaled $1,518,611, 
which is a decrease of $501,522. This change can be attributed to a decrease in capital grants and contributions 
and charges for services.by  $401,380 and $144,096, respectively: The decrease in capital grants and contributions 
is due to less grants received by the City whildthe decrease in charges for services can be attributed to a decrease 
in collection of municipal court fines. 

Governthental expenses decreased by $54,555 from last year. This decrease can be primarily attributed to the 
decreases in trade days due to the termination of trade day program during the prior fiscal year, as well as 
decreases in municipal court expenses due to the decrease in collections. 

9 



CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGENIENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Operating revenues for business-type activities decreased by $224,078, primarily as a result of a decrease in 
capital grants and contributions over the prior year. Operating expenses for business-type activities decreased 
slightly by $24,582, due to decreases in salaries and supplies. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to dem6nstrate and ensure compliance with finance-related lekal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds — The Socus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net 
resources available for Spending at the end of the year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $363,481, while total fund 
lialance reached $917,830. Of this, $61,861 is restricted for tourism, $48,333 is restricted for court technology, 
$381,345 is restricted for the Series 2015 project fund, and $62,810 is restricted for grants. As a measure of the 
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned and total fund balance to total fund 
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 21 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund 
balance represents approximately 54 percent of that same amount. 

The general fund had a decrease in fund balance of $13,202. This decrease was due to inCreases in debt 
payments and an increase iii labor costs within public safety compared to the prior year. • 

Proprietary Funds — The City's proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The City.  did not budget to use any fund balance and the net change in fund balance decreased by $13,202, 
resulting in a negative variance from the budget of $13,202. 

Actual general fund revenues were more than original budgeted revenues by $6,566 during the fiscal year. This 
net positive variance was increased by a net positive variance that occurred in the budgeted expenditures of 
$301,932. Both positive variances are offset:1)y the negative variance in other financing .sources of $321,700 
resulting in an overall negative variance of $13,202. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At the end of the- fiscal year, the City's governmental activities had invested $1,619,698 in a variety of capital 
asšets and infrastructure (net of accumulated depreciation). This represents a net increase of $48,383. 

Major capital asset events during the current year include the following: 

• South Hickory street improvements for $58,694 

• Purchase of three vehicles for $77,663 

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in note III. C. to the financial statements. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

At the end of the current year, .the City had certificates of obligation outstanding of $869,000 and general 
obligation refunding bonds outstanding of $344,000 in governmental activities. 

During the year, the City had a net decrease in long-term debt of $48,833. 

More detailed information about the City's king-term liabilities is presented in note III. D. to the financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The City adopted a $2,053,091 budget for the 2016-2017 ffscal year. The City continues to improve its services 
for its citizens while trying to keep taxes and fees to a minimum. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide'a general overview of the City's fmances. Questions concerning this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to Kim Haynes, City Secretary, P.O. 
Box 188, Kountme, Texas, 77625; telephone 409-246-3463. 

11 



(This page intentionally left blank.) 
'12 



BASIC FINANCIAL' STATEMENTS 

13 



(This page intentionally left blank) 
14 



CITY OF KOUNTZE; TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

September 30, 2016 

Assets 

• Primary Government 
Component 

Unit 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities Total KEDC 

Cash and cash equiValents 341,715 418,328 $ 	760,043 $ 	187,951 
Investments _ 	• 97,497 
Receivables, net 272,035 156,403 428,438 26,791 
Cash - restricted 554,351 ' 146,52.1 700,872 - 
Capital assets: 

Nondepreciable capital assets 119,000 12,117 131,117 107,414 
Depreciable capital assets, net 1,500,698' 761,645 2,262,343 

Total Assets 2,787,799 1,495,014 4,282,813 419,653 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows - pension 36,145 24,881 61,026 
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 36,145 24,881 61,026 

Liabilities 
Nccounti payable 

and accrued liabilities 58,608 12,63,4 ' 	71,242 
Customer deposits 146,521 146,521 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 115,298 21,18'0 136,478 
Due in more than one year 1,189,186 90,787 1,279,973 

Total Liabilities 1,363,092 271,122 1,634,214 

Deferred Inflows of ResoUrces 
Deferred inflows - pension 6,381 4,445 10,826 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,381 4,445 10,826 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 1,056,550 665,935 1,722,485 107,414 
Restricted 173,004 173,004 
Unrestricted 224,917 578,393 803,310 312,239 

Total Net Position $ 	1,454,471 $ 1,244,328 $ 	2,698,799 $ 	419,653 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Functions/Programs Expenses 

Program Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 
Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 
General government 587,558 68,307 $ 
Public safety 352,137 20,846 
Public works 339,536 272,095 
Municipal court 249,531 242,077 
Interest and fisCal agent fees 

on long-term debt 22,025 

Total Governmental Activities 1,550,787 582,479 20,846 

Business-Type Activities 
Water, sewer, and gas system 990,994 911;873 36,007 

Total Business-Type Activities 990,994 911,873 36,007 

Total Primary Government $ 	2,541,781 $ 	1,494,352 $ 	56,853 

Component Unit 
Kountze Economic Development Corporation 80,815 $ 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales tax 
Franchise and occupancy taxes 
Interest revenue 
Other 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Beginning net position 

Ending Net Pokition 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Position 
Primary Government Component Unit 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total KEDC 

$ 	(519,251) $ $ 	(519,251) $ 
(331,291) (331,291) 

(67,441) (67,441) 
(7,454) (7,454) 

• (22,025) (22,025) 
• 

(947,462) (947,462) 

(43,114) (43,114) 

(43,114) (43,114) 

(947,462) (43,114) (990,576) 

(80,815) 

-270,119 270,119 
454,630 454,63-0 151,551 
162,907 162,907 

292 395 687 615 
27,338 20,527 47,865 
52,807 (52,807) • - 

968,093 (31,885) 936,208 152,166 

20,631 (74,999) (54,368) . 	71,351 

1,433,840 1,319,327 2,753,167 348,302 

$ 	1,454,471 $ 	1,244,328 $ 	2,698,799 $ 	419,653 
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crry OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
September 30, 2016 

General 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net 
Cash - restricted 

 

341,715 
184,609 
554,351 

 

Total Assets $ 	1,080,675 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

  

 

58,608 

 

Total Liabilities 	 58,608 

   

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 	 104,237 

Fund Balance  
Restricted: 

Tourism 	 61,861 
Court technology 	 48,333 
Series 2015 project fund 	 381,345 
Grants 	 62,810 

Unassigned 	 363,481 
Total Fund Balance 	917,830  

Amounts reported for governmental actiVities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund. 

Capital assets, nondepreciable 	 119,000 
Capital assets, net depreciable 	 1,500,698 

Certain accounts receivable, net of related allowance, are not current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund. 	 87,426 

Long-term liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows related to 
pensionsare not reported in the governinental fund. 

Net pension liability 	 (4,652) 
Deferred outflows - pension 	 36,145 
Deferred inflows - pension 	 (6,381) 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 	 • 	 104,237 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported in the governmental fund. 

Compensated absences 	 „ (1 1,339) 
Long-term debt 	 (1,288,493) 

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 	1,454,471 
See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Revenues 

General 

PrOperty taxes 260,311 
Sales tax 454,630 
Franchise and occupancy taxes 162,907 
Fines and forfeitures 305,582 
Intergovernmental 20,846 
Licenses and permits 18,235 
Interest 292 
Charges for services 272,095 
Street prograrn 50,072 
Other revenues 27,338 

Total Revenues 1,572,308 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 488,903 
Public safety 314,417 
Public works 334,643 
Municipal court 248,662 
Library 118,203 
Trade days 2,778 

Capital outlay 58,689 
Debt service: 

Principal 124,326 
Interest and fiscal charges 23,189 

Total Expenditures 1,713,810 
(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures (141,502) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Debt issued 75,493 
Transfers hi 52,807 

Total Other Financing Sources 128,300 

Net Change in Fund Balance (13,202) 

Beginning fund balance 931,032 

Ending Fund Balance $ 	917,830 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
RECONCILL4TION OF' THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND,TO THE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Net changes in fund balance - total governmental fund 
	

(13,202) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different 
because: 

The governmental fund reports capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of 
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay 	 158,436 
Depreciation 	 (110,053) 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental fund. 

Deferred revenue 
	

9,808 
Receivables _ 	 (63,505) 

Net pension liability and deferred outflows and inflows related to 
the net pension asset are ne't reported in the governmental fund. 

Net pension liability 	 (35,910) 
Deferred outflows - pension 	 29,114 
Deferred inflows - pension 	 1,529 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, certificates of obligation) provides current 
fmancial resources to the governmental fund, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of the governmental fund. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, the governmental fund 
reports the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued; 
whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. 

Principal payments 	 94,000 
Capital lease payments 	 30,326 
Debt issuance 	 (75,493) 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Accrued interest 
Compensated absences 

1,164 
(5,583) 

  

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 	20,631 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE; TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
September 30, 2016 

Assets 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water, Sewer, 
and Gas 

Currerit assets: 
Casliand cash equivalents 418,328 
Accounts receivable, net 156,403 
Restricted cash 146,521 

Total Current Assets 721,252 

Noncurrent alsets: 
Capital assets: 

Nondepreciable capital asseti 12,117 
Depreciable capital assets, net 76'1,645 

Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 773,762 
Total Noncurrent Assets 773,762 

Total Assets 1,495,014 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
24,881 Deferred outflows -.pension 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,634 
Customer deposits 146,521 
Compensated absences 1,050 
Bonds and notes payable 20,130 

Total Current Liabilities 180,335 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 117 
Net pension liability 2,973 
Bonds and notes payable 87,697 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 90,787 
Total Liabilities 271,122 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
4,445 Deferred inflows - pension 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 665,935 
Unrestricted 578,393 

4 

Total Net Position $ 	1,244,328 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF KouNrrze, TEXAS 
-STATEMENT OP REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CH.ANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND" 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water, Sewer, 
and Gas 

Operating Revenues  
Charges for services 	 911,873 
Other revenue 	 20,527 

Total Operating Revenues 	932,400 

Operating Expenses  
Personnel 	 378,887 
Public works 	 369,409 
Depreciation 	 240,266 

	

Total Operating Expenses 	988,562  

	

Operating Loss 	(56,162) 

Nonoperatine Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest revenue 	 395 
Intergovernmental 	 36,007 
Interest expense 	 (2,432) 
•Transfers (out) 	 (52,807) 

	

Total Nonoperating Expenses 	(18,837) 

	

Change in Net Position 	(74,999) 

Beginning net position 	 1,319,327  

	

Ending Net Position 	$ 	1,244,328  

See Notes to Financial *Statements. 
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CITY OP KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND (Page 1 of 2) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water, Sewer, 
and Gas 

Receipts from customers and users $ 	1,017,771 
Payments for goods and services (431,821) 
Payments to employees (381,666) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 204,284 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Intergovernmental 36,007 
Transfers (out) (52,807) 

Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (16,800) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Capital assets purchased (143,834) 
Proceeds from capital lease 107,827 
Interest paid on capital debt (2,432) 
Principal paid on capital debt (41,914) 

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (80,353) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest revenue 395 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 395 
• 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 107,526 

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 457,323 

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalentš 564,849 

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Unrestricte:d cash and cash equivalents 418,328 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 146,521 

Ending Cash and Ctish Equivalents 564,849 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



Crry ÔF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - 

PROPRIETARY FUND (Page 2 of 2) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water, Sewer, 
and Gas 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) 
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating (loss) 	 (56,162) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 	 240,266 

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets: 

Receivables 	 69,745 
Net pension asset 	 21,722 
Deferred outflows - pension 	 (19,995) 

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 	 (6,427) 
Net pension liability 	 2,973 
Interest payable 	 (1,608) 
Accounts payable 	 (60,804) 
Deferred inflows - pension 	 (1,052) 
Customer deposits 	 15,626  

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 	204,284 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CiTYOF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Kountze, Texas (the "City") was incorporated in 1946, under the provisions of Act 279 
P.A. 1909, 'as amended, Home Rule City Act 2. The City operates a mayor-council form of 
government. The Council is composed of a mayor and five council members, who are elected at 
large. 

The MaYor is the chief executive officer of the City, presides at Council meetings, and is entitled to 
vote only in case of, a tie. All powers of the City are vested in the Council. Such powers include 
appointment of City Administrator, boards, and commissions; adoption of the budget; .authorization 
of bond issues; and adoption of ordinances and resolutions as deemed necessary, desirable, and 
beneficial to the City. 

The City provides the following services: general government, municipal court, public safety, and 
public works. 	 • 

The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by . an elected 
council and a mayor and is considered a primary government. As required by generally accepted 
accounting principles, these basic financial statements have been prepared based on considerations 
regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions as part of the City's 
financial reporting entity. The Kountze Economic Development Corporation, although legally 
separate, is considered part of the reporting entity. No other entities have been included as part of 
the City's ,reporting entity. Additionally, as the, City is considered a primary government for 
financial reporting purposes, its activities are not considered a part of any other governmental or 
other type of reporting entity. 

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions in 
the City's financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted 
accounting principles. These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether the City is a part of 
any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. The overriding elements ašsociated With 
prescribed criteria "considered in determining that the City's financial reporting entity status is that 
of a primary government are that it has a separately elected governing body, it is legally separate, 
and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments. Additionally, prescribed criteria 
under generally accepted accounting principles include cOnsiderations pertaining to organizations 
for which the primary government is financially accountable and considerations pertaining to 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 
government aresuch that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Kountze Econotnie Development Corporation 
4 

The Kountze Economic Development Corporation (KEDC) was created by Ihe City through an 
election in which the voters approved an additional sales tax. The KEDC was created under the 
provisions of Section 4A, Article 5190.6 of the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 for 
the purpose of promotion and development of neW and expanded business enterprises to provide 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended Septémber 30, 2016 

'and encourage employment in the public welfare on behalf of a Board of Directors appointed by 
the City Council. In the event of dissolution, net position shall be conveyed to the City. 

Complete financial statements of the KEDC can be obtained directly from the administrative 
offices of the City. 

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all activities of the primary government and its component unit. 
Governmental activities,'- which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges to external customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately 
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially 
accountable. 

C. Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide Financial Statements 

While seParate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are-  interrelated. 
The governmental activities column incorporates data from the governmental fund, while business-
type activities incorporate data from the City's enterprise fund. Separate financial statements are 
provided for the governmental fund and proprietary fund. 

As a general rule; the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governinent-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts 
are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the 
City's water and wastewater collection, wastewater treatment operations, and gas distibution 
functions and various other functions o'f the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the variouS functions concerned. 

D. Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financiestatements provide information about the City's funds. Separate Štatements for 
each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial 
statements is on Major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate column. 

The City reports the following governmental fund: 

The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and 
reported in another fund. The principal sources of revenues include local property taxes, sales 
and franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and charges for services. 
Expenditures include general government, public safety, public works, and raunicipal court. The 
general fund is always considered a major fund for reporting purposes. 

The City reports the following enterprise fund: 

The enterprise fund is used to account for and report the operations that provide water and 
wastewater collection, wastewater treatment operations, and gas distribution. The services are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the 
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governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goocis or services 
to the general public on a continuing basis will be financed or recovered priinarily through user 
charges. The water, sewer, and gas fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes. 

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any 
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances 
to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain 
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances 
between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated 
so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities colunan. 
Similarly; balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) 
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type 
activities column. 	 , 

.4, 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In 
fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While 
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the 
government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental 
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as •transfers in the governmental 
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are 
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column. 

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement 
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured` 
such as current financial resources or, economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the 
timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements. 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using tlie current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,' as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental,  funds. Issuance of, 
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

ProPerty taxes, sales taxes, franchise 'taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
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current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues, when all eligibility requirements are 
met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the 
'availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure-driven grants . 
are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other 
eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the 
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and shcirt-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. For 
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types consider temporary 
investments with maturity of three months or less when Purchased to be cash equivalents. 

2. Investments 
s,t 

The City reports all investments at fair value, except for certain investment pools and money market 
investments. Money market investments, which are short-term highly liquid debt investments that 
may include U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, are reported at amortized costs. Investments in 
nonparticipating interest earning contracts, such as certificates of deposit, are reported at cost. 

The City has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as defined in 
'the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. In summary, the City is 
authorized to invest in the following: 

U:S. treasuries 
U.S. agencies/instrumentalities 
Certificates of deposits 
Moneimarket mutual funds 
Local government investment pools 

3. Inventories •and Prepaid Items 

The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when the related 
liability is incurred (i.e., the purchase method). Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable 
to future accounting periods (prepaid expenditures) and are recognized as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when purchased. 

4. Restricted Assets 

Funds set aside for the payment of enterprise fund customer deposits and debt service are classified 
as restricted assets. 
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5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-Wide financial statements. In accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 34, infrastructure has been capitalized retroactively. Capital assets are defined by the 
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess of.  two or more years. Such asset§ are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constru.cted. 
Interest costs incurred in connection with construction of enterprise fund capital assets are 
capitalized when the effects of capitalization materially impact the fmancial statements. 

The coats of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value Of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Property, plant; and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated usefill years: 

Estimated 
Asset Description 	Useful Life 
Buildings and improvements 	 10740 years 
Infrastructure 	 20 years 
Machinery and equipment 	 5-20 years 
Operating system 	 5-33 years 

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred o47ows of 
resources, represents a consumption Of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has three items 
that qualify for reporting in this category on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 
Deferred charges have been recognized as a result of changes in actuarial assumptions for the City's 
defined benefit pension plan. This amount is deferred and amortized over the average of the 
expected service lives of pension plan members;  A deferred outflow of resources is recognized for 
the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings on the pension plan assets. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over a period of five years. A deferred charge has been recognized 
for employer pension- plan contributions that were made sUbsequent to the measurement date 
through the end of the City's fiscal year. This amount is deferred and recognized as a reduction to 
the net pension liability during the measurement period in which the contributions were made. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies td a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that 
qualifie's for reporting in this category in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. Deferred 
charges have been recognized as a result of differences between the actuarial expectations and the 
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actual economic experience related to the City's defined benefit pension plan. This amount is 
deferred and amortized over the average of the expected service lives of pension plan members. At 
the fund level, the City has only one type of item, which arises only under 'the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable 
revenue, is reported only in the governmental fund balance sheet. The governmental fund reports 
unavailable revenues from property taxes. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period that the amount becomes available. 

7. Compensated Employee Absences 

Amounts accumulated, up to certain amounts, may be paid to employees upon termination of 
employment. The estimated amount of compensation for services provided that is expected to be 
liquidated with expendable, available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund 
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it when it matures or becomes due. Amounts of 
vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable, 
available financial resources are maintained separately and represent a reconciling item between the 
fund and government-wide presentations. Earned vacation time is generally required to be used 
within the year it was earned. The City Administrator may give approval for vacation leave to be 
carried over to the following year or the employee may be paid for the unused vacation leave if 
extenuating circumstances exist for which the employee was unable to use the vacation leave 
earned. Employees who are separated from City employment in good standing may be recommended 
by the City Administrator to receive termination pay for unused vacation time that was earned in 
both the preceding and current years. 

8. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of 
Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized Over the life of the bonds 
using the straightline method, if material. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable,bond 
premium or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The fabe amount of debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance coks, 

‘whether or not withheld from the actual debt .proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

Assets acquired under ,the terms of a capital lease are recorded as liabilities and capitalized in the 
government-wide fmancial statements at the present value of net minimum lease payments at 
inception of the lease. In the year of acquisition, capital lease tran§actions are recorded as other 
financing sources • and as capital outlay expenditures in the applicable fund. Lease payments 
representing both principal and interest are recorded as expenditures in the, general fund upon 
payment with an appropriate reduction of principal recorded in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

36 



CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
NOTES TO F1NANCL4L STATEMENTS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended Septenther 30, 2016 

9. Net Position Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the CitY will fund outlays for a paiticular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the'amounts to report as 
restricted net Position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and,proprietary fund 
financial statements, a flow assumption must he made about the order in which the resources are 
considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider restricted net position to have been 
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 

10. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular, purpose from both restriCted and unrestricted 
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the 
amounts, to report as restricted, committed; assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the 
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider restricted fund balance 
to -have been depleted before using any of the componentš of unrestricted fund balance. Further, 
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed 
fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is 
applied last. 

11. FUnd Balance Policies 

Fund balances of governmental funds are reported in various categories based on ,the nature of any 
limitations requiring' the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish 
limitations, on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an 
assignment (assigned fund balance). 

Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact are classified as nonspendable fund balance. Amounts 
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, cOntributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions are classified as restricted. 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority. The 
City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption of 
an ordinance prior to the end'of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation 
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another 
ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City Council may also 
assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to Cover a gap between estimated 
revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, 
assigninents generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normallY 
have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional 
action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment. 
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12. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the -date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

13. Pensions 

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability/(asset), deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the 
fiduciary net position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System ,(TMRS) and additions 
to/deductions from TMRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that 
compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit 
payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

G. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

1. Program Revenues 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from gOods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restriéted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those 
dedicated for specific purposes, and other* internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. 

2. Property Taxes 

All taxes due to the City on real or personal property are payable at the Office of the Tax Assessor-
Collector and may be paid at any time after the tax rolls for the year have been completed and 
approved, which is no later than October 1. Taxes are due by January 31, and all taxes not paid 
prior to this date are deemed delinquent and axe subject to Such penalty and interest as the Council 
may provide by ordinance.. 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 each year. Taxes are levied 
on October 1 and are payable prior to the . next February 1. City property tax revenues are 
recognized when collected., 

3. Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and exiienses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The prineipal operating 
revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The enterprise fund 
also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of 
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connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost 
of sales'and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and. expenses. 

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

In cooperation with the department heads of the City, the City Manager prepares an annual budget for the 
general fund and the proprietary fund for the ensuing fiscal year in a form and style as deemed desirable 
by the City Council. The City Manager submits to the Council, for its review, consideration, and 
revision, both a letter describing the proposed new budget, as well as a budget for the forthcoming fiscal 
year, prior to the beginning of the 'fiscal year. The budget, as adopted, must set forth the appropriations 
for services, functions, and activities, Of the various City departments and agencies, and shall meet all 
fund requirements provided by law and required by bond covenants. During the fiscal year, the Council 
has the power to transfer any unencumbered funds allocated by the budget from one-activity, function, or 
department, to another activity, function, or department to re-estimate revenues and,expenditures and to 
amend the budget. 

Management has the power to transfer unencumbered funds allocated to the budget from one function or 
activity to another function or activity within the same department. At any time in the, fiscal year, the 
Council may make emergency appropriations to meet a pressing need to protect the public health, safety, 
or welfare. The legal level of control is the department level. 

A. Expenditures in Excess of ApPropriations 

The general 'fund had expenditures in excess of appropriations for public works of $89,186, municipal 
court of $11,658, principal payments of $9,826, and, interest and fiscal charges of $23,189 as of 
September 30, 2016. 

IIL DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS 

A. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and temporary investments include petty cash on hand iii various departments, certificates of 
deposit, and demand deposit accounts. As of year end, the City's discretly presented component unit 
had the following investments: 

Investment Type 

 

Weighted 
AVirage 
Maturity 

Fair Value 	(Years) 
Certificate of deposit 

 

-$ 	97,497 	0.71 

     

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its inveStment policy, the City manages its exposure to 
declines in fair values by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash 
requirements for ongoing Operations and invest operating funds primarily in short-term securities. 

Custodial credit risk — deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the 'event of a bank 
failure, the City's deposits May not be returned to it. The City's investment policy requires funds on 
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deposit at the depository bank to be collateralized by securities and FDIC insurance. As of year 
end, FDIC insurance and securities pledged exceeded bank balances. 

B. Receivables 

The following-comprise receivable balances at year end: 

General 
Water, Sewer, 

and Gas KEDC Total 
Property taxes $ 	107,348 $ 	 - $ $ 	107,348 
Other taxes 80,372 - 26,791 107,163 
Acbounts 231,995 - 231,995 
Less allowance (3,111) (75,592) -(78,703) 

Total $ 	184,609 $ 	156,403 $ 	26,791 $ 	367,803 

C. Capital Assets 

A surnmary of changes in capital 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

assets for the year end is as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance 	Increases 	(Decreases) 

Ending 

Balance 

Land 119,000 $ 119,000 
Total Capital Assets Not 

B eing Depreciated 119,000 119,000 

Othe'r capital assets: 
Buildings and improvements 592,414 592,414 
Machinery and equipment 577,361 77,663 	(23,411) 631,613 
Infrastructure 1,742,502 80,773 	 . 	- 1,823,275 

Total Other Capital Assets 2,912,277 158,436 	(23,411) 3,047,302 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements ,(197,408) (21,496) 	 - (218,904) 
Machinery and equipment (510,685) (31,038) 	23,411 (518,312) 
Infrastructure 	. (751,869) (57,519) 	 - (809,388) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,459,962) (110,053) 	23,411 	' (1,546,604) 
Other capital assets, net 1,452,315 48,383 	 - 1,500,698 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 	1,571,315 $ 	48,383 	$ 	 - 1,619,698 

Less associated debt (944,493) 
Plus unspent bond proceeds 381,345 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 	1,056,550 
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Depreciation was.charged to governmental functions as follows: 

General government 20,708 
Public safety 19,791 

Public works 69,554 
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 	110,053 

The following is a summary of changes' in capital assets for business-type activities for the year end: 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciate& 

Beginning 
Balance 

Increases/ 	Increises/ 
Transfers 	(Decreases) 

Ending 
Balance 

Land 12,117 $ 12,117 
Total Capital Assets Not 

Being Depreciated 12;117 12,117 

Other capital assets: 
Buildings and improvements 25,428 - 25,428 
Equipment 636,767 107,827 744,594 
OPerating system 6,105,926 36,007 6,141,933 

Total Other Capital Assets 6,768,121 143,834 6,911,955 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements (22,748) (1,341) (24,089) 
Equipment (560,915) (48,653) (609,568) 
Operating system (5,326,381) (190,272) (5,516,653) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (5,910,044) (240,266) (6,150,310) 
Other capital assets, net ,. 858,077 , 	(96,432) 761,645 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 870,194 $ 	(96,432) 	$ 773,762 

Less associated debt (107,827) 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 	665,935 

Depreciation was charged to business-type functions as follows: 

Water, sewer, and gas system 	 $ 	/40,266 
Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense $ 	240,266 
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The following is a-summary of changes in capital assets for the discretely presented component unit 
for the year end: 

Component Unit Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases 

Ending 
(Decreases) 	Balance 

Land $ 	100,414 $ 	7,000 $ - 	$ 	107,414 
Component Unit Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 	100,414 $ 	7,000 $ - 	$ 	107,414 
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D. Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of changes in the City's total long-term liabilities for the year. The City 
uses the-general fund to liquidate govermnental long-term liabilities. 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable in the 
current period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the governmental fund. Interest 
on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental fund, but rather is recognized as an expenditure 
when due. 

Beginning 
Balance 	Additions 	Reductions 

Eliding 
Balance 

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental ActiVities: 
Certificates of obligation 	$ 	950,000 	$ 	 $ 	(81,000) $ 	869,000 * $ 	75,000 
General obligation bond 	 357,000 	 (13,000) -344,000 16,000 
Capital leases 	 30,326 	75,493 	(30,326) 75,493 * -14,093 

1,337,326 	75,493 	(124,326) 1,288,493 105,093 
Other liabilities: 

Net pension liability (asset) 	 (31,258) 	35,910 4,652 
Compensated absences 	 5,756 	35,584 	(30,001) 11,339 10,205 

Total other liabilities 	(25,502) 	71,494 	(30,001) 15,991 10,205 

Total Governmental Activities 	$ 1,311,824 	$ 	146,987 	$ 	(154,327) $ 	1,304,484 $ 	115,298 

Ding-term debt due in more than one year $ 	1,189,186 

*Debt associated with governmental activities capital asšets $ 	944,493 

Beginning 
Balance 	Additions 	Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year 

Business-Type Activities: 
Bonds, notes, and other payables: 

Capital leases 	 $ 	41,914 	$ 	107,827 	$ 	(41,914) $ 	107,827 ** $ 20,130 
41,914 	107,827 	(41,914) 107,827, 20,130 

Other liabilities: 
Net pension liability (asset) 	 (21,722) 	24,695 2,973 
Compensated absences 	 7,594 	17,641 	(24,068) 1,167 1,050 

Total other liabilities 	(14,128) 	42,336 	(24,068) 4,140 1,050 

Total Business-Type Activities 	$ 	27,786 	$ 	150,163 	$ 	(65,982) $ 	111,967 $ 21,180 

Long-term debt due in more than one year $ 	90,787 
**Debt associated with business-type activities capital assets 107,827 
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Long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues: 

Description 
Interest 
Rates Balance 

Governmental Activities 
Certificates of Obligation 
Series 1999 000% $ 	395,000 
Series 2015 Combination Tax & Subordinate Lien 3.76% 474,000 

General Obligation 
Series 2015 Refunding Bond 3.76% 344,000 

1,213,000 
Capital Leases 
Kansas State Bank 2.90% 75,493 

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt $ 	1,288,493 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Leases 

Kansas State Bank 2.90% $ 	107,827 
Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt $ 	107,827 

The annual requirements to amortize certificates of obligation and general obligation bonds 
outstanding at year end were as follows: 

Year 
Ending 
Sept 30 

Governmental Activities 

Principal Interest Toial , 

2017 $ 	91,000 30,757 $ 	121,757 

2018 95,000 29,215 124,215 

2019 99,000 27,523 126,523 

2020 103,000 25,681 128,681 

2021 107,000 23,688 130,688 

2022-2026 440,000 86,142 526,142 

2027-2030_ 278,000 26,658 304,658 

Total $ 	1,213,000 $ 	249,664 $ 	1,462,664 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full faith and credit are 
pledged. Repayment of general obligation bonds are from taxes levied on all taxable property 
located within the City. The City is not obligated in any manner for special assessment debt. 
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Capital Leases 

The annual requirements to amortize capital leases outstanding at year end were as follows: 

Year 
Ending 
Sept 30 

Governmental Activities 'Business-Type Activities 
Total Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2017 $ 	14,093 2,393 $ 	20,130 ' 3,418 $ 	40,034 
2018 14,693 1,793 20,987 2,561 ' 	40,034 
2019 15,122 1,364 21,600 1,948 40,034 
2020 15,564 922 22,231 1,317 40,034 
2021 	, 

Total 
16,021 468 22,879 668 40,036 

$ 	75,493 $ 	6,940 $ 	107,827 $ 	9,912 $ 	200,172 

The assets acquired under capital leases are as follows: 

Governmental 	Business-Type 
Activities 	Activities 

Equipment $ 	77,663 $ 	l 60,927 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (7,766) . (32,938) 

Total $ 	69,897 $ 	127,989 

Federal Arbitrage 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions consisting of complex 
regulations with respect to issuance of tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage 
regulations deal with the investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than 
the interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all *interest paid to bondholders can be 
retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal Revenue 
Service (IS) at least every five years for applicable bond issues. Accordingly, there is the risk that 
if such calculations are not performed, or are not performed correctly, a substantial liability to the 
City could result. The City periodically engages an arbitrage consultant to perform the calCulations 
in accordance with the rules and regulations of the IRS. 

E. Interfund Transactions 

Transfers between the primary government funds during the year were as follows: 

. 

Fund 
General 

Water, sewer, and gas  

„ Transfer Out 	Transfer In  
52,807 

52,807 

52,807 $ 	52,807 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City participates along with 2,617 
other entities in_the Texas Municipal League's Intergovernmental Risk Pools (the !Pool"). The Pool 
purchases Commercial insurance at group rates for participants in the Pool. The City has no 
additional risk or responsibility to the Pool, outside of the payment of insurance preminms. The 
City has not significantly reduced insurance coverage or had settlements that exceeded coverage 
amounts for the past three years. 

B. Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receiVable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal iovernment. Any disallowed clairns, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts of expenditures 
that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects 
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amour"' t for claims that have been incurred but not 
reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement 
trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and other economic and social factors. No 
claim liabilities are reported at year end. 

C. Pension Plans 

Texas Municipal Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The City participates as one of 866 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defmed 
benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is 
an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, 
Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the "TMRS Act") as an agent multiple-employer 
retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texa The TMRS Act places the 
general administration and management of TMRS with a six-member Board of Trustees '(the 
Board"). Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, 

TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a 
tax-qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly 
available comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com. 

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMkS. 

Benefits Provided 

TYIRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the 
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. 
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At retirement;the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, 
and the City-fmanced monetary credits, with interest, were used to purchase an annuity. Members 
may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also 
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a partial lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 
12, 24, or 36 monthly Payments, which cannot exceed 75 percent of the member's deposits and 
interest. 

The plan provisions hre adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in 
the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 

2016 2015 
Employee deposit rate 5.00% 5.00% 
Matcbing ratio (City to employee) 1 to 1 1 to 1 
Years required for vesting 5 5 
Service requirement eligibility 

(expressed as age/yrs of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20 
Updated service credit 0% 0% 
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At the December 31, 2015 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently rbceiving benefits 	 2 
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving, benefits 	 38 
Active employees 	 23 

Total 	63 

Contributions 

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either five percent, six percent, or seven percent 
of employee gross ernings, and the City-matching percentages are either 100 percent, 150 percent, 
or 200 percent, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing 
TMRS, the contribution rate for each entity is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry 
Age Normal (EAN),actuarial ,cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to , finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the City were required to cOntribute five percent of their annual gross earnings 
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 1.07 percent and 0.94 percent in 
calendar years 2015 and 2016, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2016 were $9,213 which equal to the required contributions. 

Net Pension Liability 

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2015 and the Total 
Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of . 
that date:  
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The TPL in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 	 2.50 % per year 
Overall payroll growth 	3.00% per year 
Investment rate of retum 	6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including Mflation 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, 
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct R22000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables 
with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109 percent and female rates 
multiplied by 103 percent. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to 
account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied 
by 109 percent a.nd female rates .multiplied by 103 percent with a three-year set-forward for both 
males and females. In addition, a three percent minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the 
impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully 
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the three 
percent floor. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of 
actuarial experienCe studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010 
through December 31, 2014. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates 
were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, 
and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 
valuation, along with a change to the EAN actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed 
annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation. After the AsSet Allocation 
Study analysis and experience investigation study, r  the Board amended the long-term expected rate 
of return pn pension plan investments from 7.00 percent to 6.75 percent. Plan assets are managed 
on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation, as well as the production of 
income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pensión plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return 
assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, the actuary focused on the area 
between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the 
geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). At its meeting on July 30, 
2015, the TMRS Board approved a new portfolio target allocation. 
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The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return (Arithmetic) 
Domestic Equity 17.50% 4.55% 
International Equity 17.50% 6.10% 
Core Fixed Income 10,00% 1.00% 
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 3.65% 
Real Return 10.00% 4.03% 
Real Estate 10.00% 5.00% 
Absolute Retum 10.00% 4.00% 
Private Equity 5.00% 8.00% 

Total 100.00% 

Discount Rate  

The disCount rate used to measure the TPL was 6.75 percent. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the 
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current -active and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term eipected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to.determine the TPL. 

Changes in the NPL/(NPA). 
Increase (Decrease) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset) 

(A) (B) (A) - (B) 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 49,779 49,779 
Interest 39,737 39,737 

Change of benefit terms 

Difference between expected and actual experience (3,269) (3,269) 

Changes of assumptions 23,734 ' 23,734 

Contributions - employer 8,647 (8,647) 

Contributions - employee 40,405 (40,405) 

Net investment income 899 (899) 

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 

contributions (27,058) (27,058) 

Administrative expense -- 	(548) 548 

Other changes (27) 27 
Net ehanges 82,923 22,318 60,605 

Balance it Deeember 31, 2014 556,317 609,297 .(52,980) 
Balance at December 31, 2015 639,240 $ 	631,615 7,625 
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Sensitivity of the NPL/(NPA) to Changes in the Discount Rate  

The following presents the NPL/(NPA) of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75 
percent, as well as what the City's NPL/(NPA) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current 
rate: 

1% Decrease in 	 1% Increase in 
DiscountRate 	Discount Rate 	Discount Rate 

(5.75%) 	(6.75%) 	(7.75%)  
• City's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 	$ 	104,435 	$ 	7,625 	$ 	(72,356) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  ' 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in a separately-
issued TMRS financial report. That report ma"),  be obtained on the Internet at www.tmis.com. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized net pension expense of $18,128. 

At September 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

10,826 
Changes in actuarial assumptions 16,585 
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 37,735 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 6,706 

Total $ 61,026 $ 	10,826 

$6,706 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the NPL for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2017. Other arnounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

!elated to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30 	Pension Expense  

2017 	 11,094 
2018 	 12,283 
2019 	 11,767 
2020 	 8,350 
2021 

Thereafter 
Total $ 	43,494  

50 



CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
- 	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

D. Othér Post Employment Benefits 

TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund 

Plan Description 

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life 
insurance plan opefated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). 
The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and 
retired employees. The City may tertninate coverage under and discontinue participation in the 
SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following 
January 1. 

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the 
emploYee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month 
period preceding the month of death); retired employees axe insured for $7,500; this coverage is an 
"other post employment benefit," or OPEB. For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City 
offered the supplemental death benefit to both active and retired employees. 

Contributions 

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual 
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The 
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all 
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; tile intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life 
insurance during einployees entire careers. 

The ,City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2016, 2015, and 2014 were 
$1,446, $1,128, and $1,210, respectively,. which equaled the required contributions each year. The 
City's contribution rates for the past three years are shown below: 

2016 2015 2014 

Annual Required Contribution (Rate) 0.03% 0.02% 0.01% 
Actual Contribution Made 0.03% 0.02% 0.01% 

Percentage of ARC Contribution 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 
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CrrY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

- For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)  

Revenues  
Property taxes 
Sales tax 
Franchise and occupancy taxes 
Fines and forfeitures 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and permita 
Interest 
Charges for services 
Trade days 
Street program 
Other revenUes 

otal Revenues  

	

Original 
	

Final 

	

, Budget 
	

Budget 

262,278 $ 262,278 $ 

	

427,685 	427,685 

	

154,467 	154,467 

	

288,526 	288,526 

	

21,940 	 21,940 

	

13,326 	 13,326 

	

196 	 196 

	

272,905 	272,905 

	

27,185 	 27,185 

	

50,013 	 50,013 

	

47,221 	 47,221  

	

1,565,742 	1,565,742 

260,311 
454,630 
162,907 
305,582 
20,846 
18,235 

292 
272,095 

50,072 
27,338 

(1,967) 
26,945 
8,440,  

17,056 
(1,094) 
4,909 

96 
(810) 

(27,185) 
59 

(19,883) 
1,572,308 6,566 

Expenditures  
General government 
Public safety 	' 
Public wörks 
Municipal court 
Library 
Trade days 

Capital outlay 
Debt serviee: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal eharges 

Total Expenditures 

(Deficiency) of Revenues 
(Unde4Expenditures  

	

519,933 	519,933 

	

339,214 	-339,214 

	

245,457 	245,457 

	

237,004 	237,004 

	

122,474 	122,474 

	

27,185 	 27,185 

	

409,975 	409,975 

	

114,500 	114,500 
- 

2,015,742 	2,015,742 

(450,000) 	(450,000)  

	

488,903 
	

31,030 

	

314,417 
	

24,797 

	

334,643 
	

(89,186) * 

	

248,662 
	

(11,658) * 

	

118,203 
	

4,271 

	

2,778 
	

24,407 

	

58,689 
	

351,286 

	

124,326 
	

(9,826) * 

	

23,189 
	

(23,189) * 
1,713,810 , 	301,932 

(141,502) 	308,498 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)  
Debt issued 	 450,000 	450,000 
Transfers in 

Total Other Financing Sources  450,000 	450,000  

	

75,493 	(374,507) 

	

52,807 	 52,807  

	

128,300 	(321,700) 

Net Change in Fund Balance $  

  

(13,202) ,$ 	(13,202) 

931,032  

917,830 

Beginning fund balance 

   

Ending Fund Balance 

  

      

Notes to Reejuired Supplementary Information: 
1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
2. * Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control.. 
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CrTY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LL4BILITY-AND RELATED RATIOS 

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
For, the Year Ended Septeniber 30, 2016 

Total l'ension Liability 

Measurement Year* 
2014 2015 

Service cost 52,505 $ 	49,779 
Interest (on the total pension liability) 36,999 39,737 
Changes of benefit terms 
Difference between expected and actual 

experience (18,272) (3,269) 
Change of assumptions 23,734 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (34,453) (27,058) 
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 36,779 82,923 

Beginning total pension liability 519,538 556,317 

Ending Total Pension Liability $ 	556,317 $ 	639,240 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - employer 	 ' $ 	5,631 $ 	8,647 
Contributions - employee 40,432 40,405 
Net investment income 32,375 899 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (34,453) (27,058) 
Administrative expense (338) (548) 
Other (28) (27) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 43,619 22,318 

Beginning plan fiduciary net position 565,678 609,297 

Ending Plan Fiduciary NelPosition $ 	609,297 $ 	631,615 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 	(52,980) $ 	7,625 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension Liability 109.52% 98.81% 

CoVered Emploiee Payroll 808,635 $ 	808,095 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage 
of Covered Employee Payroll (6.55%) 0.94% 

*Only two years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next eight-year period. 
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CITY OF KOUNTZE, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF CONiRIBUTIONS 

TEXAS MUIVICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Actuarially determined contribution 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Fiical Year* 
2014 2015 2016 

$ 	5,126 $ 	7,714 $ 	$9,213 

determined contribution 5,391 7,714 $9,213 
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 	(264) $ $ 

dnvered employee payroll $ 	825,683 $ 	798;748 $ 	947,754 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll 0.65% 0.97% 0.97% 

*Only three years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next seven-year period. 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information: 

1. Valuation Date: 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in 
January, 13 months later. 

2. Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates: 

Actuarial cost method 	 Entry age normal 

Amortization method 	 Level percentage of payroll, closed 

Remaining amortization period 	 25 years 

Asset valuation method 	 10 year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor 

Inflation 	 2.5% 

Salary increases 	 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation 

Investment rate of return 	 6.75% 

Retirement age 	 Experience-based table of rates that are specific tO the City's 
plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation 
pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-2014. 

Mortality 

3. Other Information: 

There were no benefit changes during the year. 

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female 
rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully 
generational basis with scale BB. 
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v,i1T II \ Ruh PE( IcEA 

Required Auditor Disclosure Letter 

April 18, 2017 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
City Council Members of the 

City of Kountze,.Texas: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, and each major fund of the City of Kountze, Texas (the "City") for the year ended 
September 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2017. Professional standards require that 
we provide the City Council (the "governing body") with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standaids, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and tinaing of our audit. 

I. Out:Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Štanclands  

As stated in our engagement letter dated September 27, 2016, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to, express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with the 
governing body's oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve the governing body or 
management of its responsibilities. 

II. Planned Scope and Titning `of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to the governing 
body in our engagement letter dated September 27, 2016. 

HI. Significant Audit Findings 

I. Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

A. Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 

Houston  
3210 Bingle Rd., Ste. 300 
Houston,TX 77055 
713.263.1123 

Austin 	 MI  Offices 
P.O. Box 826 	 100 Congress Ave., Ste. 2000 	www.texasauditors.com  
Bellville,TX 77418 	 Austin,TX 78701 	 info@ trauditors.corn 
713.263.1123 	 512.381.0222 	 713.263.1550 fax 

Governmental 
Audit Quality Center 
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B. Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on managenient's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the fmancial statements were: 

Management's estimate of the useful lives of capital askts is based on industry standards 
relating to capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 
the useful lives of capital assets in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Estimates are used ifi the calculation of the pension liability/(asset) and thé required 
annual contribution. The Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) hires a licensed 
actuary to make key assumptions and to perform calculations, as well as an independent 
auditor to reviéw those assumptions and calculations. We evaluated the reasonableness 

• 	of the employee data provided by the City to TMRS. 

C. The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement 
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most 
sensitive disclosure affecting the fmancial statements was: 

The disclosure of long-terrn-debt in the financial statements is significant to financial 
statement users because it discloks the City's long-term financial obligations. 

2. Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

3. Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. The attached schedule summarizes both material and immaterial misstatements 
detected as a result of our audit procedures. 

4. Disagreements with Managernent 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with inanagement is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the, 
auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 'course of our audit. 

5. Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated April 18, 2017. 

6. Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
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determine that the consultant fias all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such conšultations'with 
other accountants. 

7. Other Yudit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of 'matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management ,each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 

I V . Other Matters 

We applied cert-  ain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information (RSI), as identified on the 
table of contents, which supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of ' 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and'comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our.inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RS1 and do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the RSI. 

V. Restrictions on I:Jse 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, City Council, and management and is not intended to 
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Cke_ ARRIS C46-ECHACEK, ILL,P 

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
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WOrkpePer. 	2.5.06 Adlostid Journal Entifits &mon 
Account 	 Description 

Adjusting Journal Entries 
Adjusting Journal Entries JEW 1 
Sales las menial eV/alumni for FY2016. 

WM Ref Debit 	 Credit 

4/20/2017 
3:02 PM 

10000-200 	Due to KEDC 
10-000-303 	Sale. Tax 
10-000-122 	Sales Tax Receivable 
10-000-360 	General Fnd Res 

183.71 
92 05 

62.09 
853 71 

Total 175.80 97540 

Adjusting Journal Entries JES 2 
To accrue compsnsated absences for miler and seiver. 

20.000-207 	Compensated Absence Lablift6 5427 86 
20-200.411 	Wages WS 6,427.06 

Total 6427.86 1,427.66 

Adjusting Juana' 	Entries JE 	3 
To accrue 9/26 and 9/30 0**,011  for anner01  fond. 

10-100-411 	Wages 1,530.20 
10.100-412 	Social Security 117 06 
10410411 	Wages PO 1,75640 
10410-412 	Social Security pD 134.37 
10-170-411 	Wagon Lb 819.31 
10-170-412 	Soolal Security Lb 47.38 
10190411 	Wages MC 601.84 
10-195-412 	Social SeburIty MC 46 04 
10-000-200 	Acutred Salaries 4.052 60 

Tod 4,852.60 4652.60 

Adjustlng Journal Entries -PE S 4 
To accrue 9/29 and 9/30 payroll (or gas hied. 

30.300-411 	Wagee 359.04 
30-300-412 	Social Security ain 27.47 
30-000206 	Acurred Salaries 380.51 

Total 306.51 38151 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE 	5 
To accnie 9129 and 9/30 payroll for W/S fund. 

20000-411 	Wages WS 2,979.49 
20-200-412 	Social Security WS 227 93 
20-000-206 	Amami Saleries 3.207 42 

TOial 3,20742 3067,42 

Adjusting Journal &tries JEN 6 
To accrue Sept 7111 through Swot 301/1 Way revenue. 

20-000,315 	Walw Revenue 4,077.70 
20-000-114 	Unbele0 Revenue 4,077.70 

Total 4,677.70 4,077.70 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE 07 
To *Mud for allowance of uncollectiale account. and accrue accounts recalvable at year end 

20-000.115 	Accounts Receivable 3,365 12 
20-000-115 	Accounts Receivable 7,590 11 
20-000-245 	I/noel/actable ACCOUMS 3,365.12 
20-020-315 	Wale Revenue 7590.11 

Total 16,955.23 10,955.23 

Adjusting Joumal Entries JE 
To adjust property tax receivable and deferred revenue for fiscal year end 

10-000-120 	Tax Receivables 7,949 40 
10-000-130 	Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 1,858.99 
10-000-230 	Deferred Revenue 9,008 39 

To6e/ 960409 11,608.39 

Adjusting Jeanne! Entries JESS 
To record TMRS pension utak or 2016 fiscal year. 

20-000105 	Deferred Oulflovm-Contrbutbes Aber 215 49 
20-000-156 	Deferred Outflows-DV in Prof and Act Eam 13,021.51 
20-000-157 	Deferred Outflows Memos in Assumption Omegas 6,755 OD 
20-000-268 	Deferred inflows-Def br Di. And Act, ea .1051 72 
20-200-020 	Pension Efilmnae 3,648.02 
20000-257 	Net Pensbn Lability 24,625.12 

Total 24,695.12 24,615.12 

Adjusting Journal Enlrla.JE# 16 
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3.02 PM 

To mat payable found In search for unrecorded IlablEles 

10-195-523 	Stale CompPallor 
10-000-201 	Accounts Payable 

25,897.67 

25,587.67 
Total 25417.17 25,117.117 

Adjusting Journal Entries JEW 11 
To correct Interact for deN payment posted lo kicorrect account 

10-000-577 	Interest payment fir Bonds 
10-000577 	hterest payment for Bonds 12.554.16 
10-100-734 	Transfer CEO Series 21315#60023450 12.554.11 
10-100-736 	Transfer CEO Series 2015180023442 6,976,02 

Total 21,429.20 21,42921 

Adjustind Joumal EntNes JE l 12 
To record caplet assets end depreciation for 2016 fiscal year 

20-000-119 	Furniture and Equipment 30,007.20 
20-000.240 	Working Fund Balance 73,382.74 
20-200415 	Cannel:03n Expense 199659E0 
30-300-015 	Depacletion Espana, 40E0006 
20000-119 	Furniture and Equipment 73,36274 
20-000-211 	Accumualled Depreciation 190.0511.110 
20-200-641 	Grant Evans* 30,007.20 
30-000-211' 	Arationualled Depreclellon 40,606 06 

Total 349 15500 349 85510 

AdjuatIng Journal Entries JEI 13 
To move bond payment to correct account. 

10-000-575 	Principle payment 50000.00 
10.000-676 	008 Intarest expense 1,759 61 
10-100-650 	Debt Payment 30,32623 
113-000-360 	Transfer In 50,000 00,  10-140411 	Equipment Purchase 32,085.84 

Total 82 045.114 12,015.84 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE6 14 
To move debt payment to correct avenge accounL 

20-000-252 	interest Payable /104.05 
20400-274 	Notes Paybale 	State Bank 41,114 37 
20-000-475 	Interest Expense 3,341 69 
30-000-252 	'Merest Payable 804.05 
20-000-475 	Interest Evans. 804.05 
20-200.811 	Equipment Purchase 3,341 59 
20200-811 	Equipment Purchase 41,914.37 
30-300-515 	Wen &pansy 1104.05 

Total 4054.11 40,164.10 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE 1 15 
To record new debt fix 2018 fiscal year. 

20000-119 	Fumiture and Equipment 107,626.95 
20-000.274 	Notes Paths!, lo Kansas Stale Bonk 107,112E95 

Total 107,826.95 197.128.95 

Adjusting Journal Enid.. JE 116 	• 
To correct expense coded lo bleared the Nem. 

10-160-022 	t3arba9e Ccritracl 13,410.67 
10-140-611 	Equipment Purchase 13.410 57 

Total 13,410.57 63,410.57 

Total Adjusting Journal Entries 712,557.02 782,567.02 

Total AN Journal Entries 712,557.02 782,557.02 
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